
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

      OF THE TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

JULY 19, 2006 
 
The July 19, 2006 Regular Meeting of the Jackson Township Board of Adjustment was called to order by 
Chairman Sgro at 7:36 p.m. with a salute to the flag by all present.  Attorney Sean Gertner read the Open 
Public Meetings Act Statement. 
 
 
ROLL CALL:  Jeffrey Bowen    Peter Maher   

Barry Calogero    Kevin DiGesu, Alt. #1 
Joy Ann Harmer, Vice Chair  Vincent Sgro, Chairman    

   Diana LaBianca, Secretary 
       
ABSENT:  Glen Bouthillette, Alt. #2 
   John Straka 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Richard Megill, Director of Planning and Zoning 
   Sean Gertner, Board Attorney 
   James Gluck, Esq. 
   Wayne McVicar, Board Engineer 
   Mark Muraczewski, Planner 
    
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS 

Resolutions for applications heard June 7, 2006 were prepared and voted on by the previous board. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

June7, 2006   - Peter Maher voted to approve the minutes of June 7.  He is the only qualified, 
returning member of the Board to approve those minutes. 

 

July 5, 2006 – Motion to approve by HARMER/LaBianca.  YES:  Harmer, LaBianca, DiGesu, 
Sgro.   

 

July 13, 2006 – Motion to approve the open session minutes by CALOGERO/ DiGesu.  YES:  
Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

July 13, 2006 –Closed Session – tabled. 
 

PAYMENT OF VOUCHER 

 

Motion to approve the voucher for Recording Secretary for tonight’s meeting by HARMER/LaBianca.  
YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Mr. Megill announced the applicants for Items 2 and 8 requested to be carried to the August 2, 2006 meeting 
without further notice.  Motion to carry by HARMER/DiGesu.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, 
LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
Mr. Megill announced the applicant for Number 12 requested to be carried to November 1, 2006 with 
renotice.  Motion to carry by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, 
DiGesu, Sgro. 

 

MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION 

 

APPLICANT: 19 PETROLEUM DISTRIBUTORS 

BLOCK: 54   LOT: 1.01   ZONE: RGC-1 

LOCATION: WHITESVILLE AND HOPE CHAPEL ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A 1- YEAR TIME EXTENSION OF APPROVAL RESOLUTION # 2004-55 
OBTAINED ON JULY 7, 2004 FOR PRELIMINARY AND FINAL SITE PLAN AND USE VARIANCE.  
 

Andrew Westhoven, P.E., of Challoner Associates was sworn and his credentials accepted.  He appeared on 
behalf of 19 Petroleum Distributors for a 1-year extension of approvals.  The delay in perfecting the site plan 
is due to incomplete sewer construction.  They need final approval from JTMUA.  Mr. Gertner addressed Mr. 
Westhoven, stating the applicant must have his attorney represent them because they are a corporation.  Mr. 
Gertner asked when the time extension was due, and was told it is needed immediately, as the site plan 
approvals expired 7/7/06.  Application carried to 8-2-06.  Motion to carry by MAHER/Harmer.  YES:  
Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
Mr. McCrystal swore the professionals, who stated their names and affiliations for the public. 



Page 2 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

APPLICATIONS 

 

1. APPLICANT: DIANE & OMAR ELFASHNY  (VARIANCE 2569) 

 BLOCK: 5.01   LOT: 22.02   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 274 ANDREWS ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 48 INCH HIGH PICKET FENCE AND 6 
FT. SOLID FENCE IN FRONT YARD.  
 
Omar Elfashny sworn.  He wants to install a new fence up because he put in a pool and currently has a chain 
link fence but wants a higher fence for privacy.  Mr. Maher asked if there are any sight triangle issues.  Mr. 
Elfashny said the picket fence is in front and the solid fence goes around the back.  The fence will be 39’ in 
from the side property line.  Mr. McVicar had no concerns. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward; PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED 
 
Motion to approve by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, 
Sgro. 
 

2. APPLICANT: JORGE & MIRIAM ARTILES  (VARIANCE # 2568) 

 BLOCK: 66.09   LOT: 31.09    ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 7 BEAR TRAIL 

 
APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT WING WALLS 46 INCHES TO 56 INCHES 
HIGH IN THE FRONT YARD WHERE 30-INCH HIGH WALLS ARE ALLOWED.  
 

Application was carried to August 2, 2006 with no further notice. 

 

3. APPLICANT: BRIAN & MICHELE RUDITSKY (VARIANCE #2575) 

 BLOCK: 98.01   LOT: 15.01   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 1 REESE COURT 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 6 FT. SOLID FENCE IN FRONT YARD 
ON THIS CORNER LOT.  

 

Brian Ruditsky was sworn and stated he wants to construct solid fence for privacy.  Mr. McVicar said the 
fence is not in the sight triangle and is set back sufficiently from the roadway. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward; PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED 
 
Motion to approve by CALOGERO/DiGesu.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, 
Sgro. 
 

4. APPLICANT: VINCENT SCHWARTZ (VARIANCE # 2560) 

 BLOCK: 135.01  LOT: 45.14   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 437 COOK ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO UTILIZE AN EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE AS A 
HOME OCCUPATION FOR A WOODWORKING SHOP. (CARRIED FROM JUNE 7TH 2006) 

 

Mr. Cucci, attorney for an objector asked if he could sit at the table to take notes.  Chairman Sgro agreed. 
 
Vincent Schwartz was reminded he is still under oath.  He stated he creates unfinished furniture.  He receives 
deliveries between 6:00 and7:00 a.m. once a month.  There are no other employees.  This business will not 
interfere with traffic on the street.  The work is done in the existing garage.  Ms. Harmer asked about the type 
of  machines used and the time of day they are used.  Mr. Schwartz said they are regular woodworking tools:    
band saw, joiner, drill press, hobby type equipment - nothing heavy duty, used between 8am and 7 pm.  Mr. 
Maher questioned the deliveries between 6-7 am and  Mr. Schwartz stated once per month he receives a 
delivery of plywood from a good-sized truck, not a tractor trailer; no fork lift is used; it is unloaded by hand.  
Mr. Calogero asked if his is a seven day operation and was told he works Monday to Friday.  Mr. DiGesu 
asked if the building is insulated to reduce noise and was told yes.  When asked about the machines and dirt 
created, Mr. Schwartz said the machines have bags on them and dirt is disposed of properly.  Mr. DiGesu 
asked if the delivery could be made any other time to reduce noise at that time.  Mr. Schwartz answered the 
truck driver’s route is that time.  Ms. LaBianca asked if the wiring in the garage can handle the machinery and 
Mr. Schwartz said yes, it is hooked up to proper voltage.  Mr. Megill commented a building permit is needed 
and all codes will have to be met.  Mr. DiGesu asked if this business is in effect at this time and was told it 
was a hobby until now.  Mr. Bowen asked Mr. Schwartz if this is his only source of income and was told no, 
he teaches woodworking at the vocational school and he is a stay at home dad.   
 
Mr. McVicar referred to the prior Board Engineer’s letter from Al Yodakis dated 5-31-06 that was entered 
into the record as evidence.  Mr. McVicar said a new survey was to be prepared, and now one additional 
variance is required for a pre-existing shed adjacent to the existing garage, set back from the side property line 
7.4’ where 15’ is required.  The shed has been there 15 years.  Mr. Megill stated the shed is pre-existing, non- 



Page 3 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 
conforming.  Mr. Gertner said the change of use requires a variance for all structures requiring it, even if they 
are pre-existing.  Mr. Maher said the new survey was requested because all structures were not shown on the 
original application.   
 
Mr. Cucci said he was here in June and the plot plan submitted with the application was from 1987.  He 
pointed out there were two sheds on the property that were not on the plot plan and the matter could not be 
heard.  The new application states one shed will be moved and the other shed is 7.4’ off the property line.  Mr. 
Schwartz said he is applying for a hardship variance.  The planner’s report said it is a conditional use within 
the zone.  This is not noted on his application or in his public notice, so Mr. Cucci feels the application is 
flawed.  Mr. Gertner read the affidavit of publication and said Mr. Cucci is correct.  The notices for the 
variances are not in the publication.  Mr. Megill said he thought the use could be approved and Mr. Schwartz 
could go for site plan approval later.  Mr. DiGesu asked what the hardship is.  Mr. Schwartz said this is a 
source of income for him.  Mr. Megill stated his denial said it was for a home occupation.  He could come 
back for site plan approval.  Mr. Cucci said according to Jackson Ordinance Chapter 109-112, home 
occupations may be permitted in this zone.  This property does not meet the lot requirements and this is 
interconnected.  Mr. Maher said the house was built in the R-1 zone and conformed at the time.  The zone 
changed.  Nothing on the street conforms to the zone.  Mr. Cucci said he does not meet the requirements of 
the zone or for home occupations, and his notice did not indicate that.   
 
Mr. Bowen asked if there have been complaints, and Mr. Schwartz said a neighbor complained.  Mr. Bowen 
asked how long he had been doing this and was told 12 years at this location.  The complaints started about 1 
year ago, when there was new ownership of the property.  The previous owner passed away and there were 
never any other complaints. 
 
Mr. Gertner said the engineer and planner did not have enough opportunity to review the application and the 
board has questions, so he feels the applicant should re-notice in its entirety for a cleaner application.  Mr. 
Schwartz said he made the application under the guidance of the Zoning office.  Mr. Gluck said the applicant 
should file an amended application to show all variances he is requesting so his notice is proper.  Mr. Megill  
asked the board to have every objection on the record so all objections are handled instead of piecemeal.  Mr. 
Gertner said the objections should not be voiced until his proper notice is printed.  Mr. Megill said Mr. 
Schwartz already moved one of the sheds.   
 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 
Pamela Namowitz, 436 Cook Road, sworn.  She has lived across the street for 20 years, they are long-time 
neighbors and Mr. Schwartz keeps his property immaculate.  He is a model citizen.  One would never know 
anything is going on at the house.  A small truck is used for the delivery, she does not hear it coming or going.  
Mr. Schwartz’ garage is cleaner than most people’s houses.  He is very anal.  His pick up truck is immaculate.  
As far a sound, she never hears anything.  Because of his injury, he stays home with his children and this 
issue is blown out of control.  Mr. Cucci asked her how long he’s been working out of his garage.  As long as 
she knows him, he has been puttering, and she’s been there 20 years.  Mr. Cucci asked if she is friendly with 
the objector.  She said the condition of the property is bad.  
 
Mr. Santols, 128 Piccadilly Drive, sworn.  His backyard overlooks the Schwartz backyard.  He has two small 
children, and he hears the delivery, and his concern is if the business takes off, there could be many trucks.  
Mr. Sgro said the number of trucks can be limited.  Mr. Bowen said it looks like this house is 832’ away from 
Mr. Schwartz, at least 700’ from the garage.  Mr. Santols complained about the potential for the noise.  Mr. 
Sgro asked if he filed a complaint and was told no.  Mr. Santols said he pays high taxes and this is a 
residential area.  He does not want a business there.  Mr. DiGesu asked how old his children are and was told 
4 years old.  When asked if his kids go near the property,  Mr. Santols said yes when they ride their bikes.  
Mr. Bowen said it appears to be so far away.  Mr. McVicar said the position of Mr. Santols’ house is not to 
the rear, but to the side.  He visited the site and noticed Mr. Santols’ fence, and the applicant has a fence too.  
Mr. Santols said his property is higher 
 
Mohammed Chaudhry, 132 Piccadilly Drive, sworn.  His backyard meets Mr. Schwartz’ and he objects to he 
noise.  He said people sleep during the day because they work at night and this is a residential area.  Noise 
pollution does not allow people to sleep.  His wife works nights and comes home 1-2 am.  She gets up 12:00 
p.m.   The noise is in the morning from 8a.m. to 12 or 1p.m.  Mr. DiGesu asked where his property is.  Ms. 
Harmer pointed out this is a one-man business and he can’t run more than one machine at a time.  Mr. Bowen 
asked if he ever had work done on his house.  Mr. Chaudhry said no.  But Mr. Schwartz makes noise.  Mr. 
Chaudhry said he doesn’t mind people working on their homes for a short period time.  Mr. Schwartz said 
with all the homes going up in the neighborhood, he could be hearing other construction noise.  Mr. Schwartz 
said pneumatic hammers are used.  Mr. Sgro said they could ask him to insulate the garage. 
 
Robert Silva, 131 Piccadilly Drive, sworn.  He wants a quiet quality of life and assurances this will be a one- 
man operation.  Will they have to call the police?  Mr. Sgro said the variance can be specific.  He wants the 
board to consider the quality of living in the neighborhood.  This is a noisy operation.  Ms. Harmer asked if he 
ever had furniture or appliances delivered to his house.  He said no.  Mr. Sgro said one truck per month is not 
a lot and provisions can be made in the resolution.  Mr. Megill stated the Code Enforcement officers have 
noise meters and if the ordinance is violated, he can dispatch his officers.  Mr. Megill noted we were never 
called once to this address.  Mr. Schwartz would need further approvals to expand the business.  Mr. DiGesu 
asked where he lives, and was told lot 2.  He was asked if he can see the shop.  When asked how many kids, 
Mr. Silva said two – one age 4 and one age 2.  Mr. Sgro said Mr. Schwartz was there many years without  



Page 4 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 
complaints, and limitations can be placed in any resolution of approval.  Mr. Silva said these homes did not 
exist then and they do now, and he wants the same quality of life.   
 
Mr. Cucci asked Mr. Schwartz how long he has been commercially working and was told never, this is still a 
hobby.  Mr. Cucci said his business has been advertised in the Yellow Pages since 2003.  Mr. Schwartz 
responded it has been in the Yellow Pages for 15 years, and he has requested it taken out, only to be forced to 
have his number changed to have the ad removed.  The ad reads V&S Custom Furniture.  Mr. Schwartz said 
he had a shop on County Line Road and used his home mailing address to receive mail.  Mr. Cucci showed 
his application, which showed the new number. Mr. Cucci pulled the transmittal and asked if there was a 
response from Fire Prevention.  Mr. Schwartz said he had one and showed it to him.  Dated 6-7-06, it 
indicates the variance was reviewed with no objection by the fire official.  Mr. Cucci referred to ordinance 
109-112, which states there is to be no change to the fire rating of the structure.  He gave no testimony on 
other conditions under 109-112.  Mr. Megill explained the criteria under 109-112 for Home Occupations 
contains a list, and if you don’t meet any one of those items, you must apply to the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment, otherwise the conditional use is permitted and if all conditions are met, the application can be 
heard by the Planning Board.  It does not say you have to comply with all conditions.  As far as fire ratings, 
the DCA has rules and will review his structure.  The applicant is here to ask for the relief needed.  Mr. Cucci 
asked Mr. Schwartz how he meets the positive and negative criteria.  The Board attorney told Mr. Schwartz to 
state what he is asking for, and Mr. Gluck asked if his business would have a substantial impact on his zone.  
Mr. Schwartz answered no.  Mr. Gluck asked if this was a positive impact.  Mr. Schwartz said yes. 
 
Mr. DiGesu asked Mr. Schwartz asked if he objected to any board member seeing the business. Mr. Schwartz 
said no.  Mr. Maher said he visited the site and pulled in front of the property, which is immaculate.  At 3 
p.m. there was no noise, he does not know if Mr. Schwartz was working at the time.  He could not tell a 
business was there.  Mr. Schwartz said the engineer was there as well and saw the same.  Mr. DiGesu asked 
that the delivery truck be limited.  Mr. Schwartz said the people who complained about the noise leave early 
for work and are not there when the truck delivers.  Ms. LaBianca asked which days he expects to work and 
Mr. Schwartz said Monday through Friday, no weekends.  And there would be no woodworking before 8:30 
a.m. or after 6:30 p.m.  Ms. LaBianca, asked where the truck originates, and was told from Pennsaucken.  He 
has one delivery per month.  This is a one-man operation.  Mr. Maher recommended an 8 -5 p.m. operation. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED 

 
Motion to close the public portion by DiGesu,Calogero.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, 
Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
Discussion:  Mr. Megill stated the applicant must move the shed and obtain a permit to do so, and must 
obtain outside agency approvals from the MUA, Forester, Board of Health, Ocean County Soils, Ocean 
County Planning Board, Ocean County Soils, and Traffic Safety, stating these are standard conditions.  The 
hours would be limited to between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m., one employee, one truck per month, Monday through 
Friday operation.  Mr. Cucci stated per 109-97C  he needs site plan approval.   
 
Motion to approve by DiGESU/Calogero.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, 
Sgro. 
 
   

Recess at 9:20 p.m. /Reconvened 9:25 p.m. 

 
Mr. Gertner said Number 11 was carried to August 2 at 7 p.m. with a waiver of time and no further notice 
required.  Mr. Shea asked the same for number 7 and 9, any waivers of time granted with no further notice. 
Mr. McVicar said he has not reviewed the plans for number 10 and asked if they could be carried.  Mr. Shea 
agreed to carry to August 2 with no further notice.   
 
With regard to application #5, Bernard Weinstein, Esq. questions the Zoning Board’s jurisdiction to hear this 
case.  Mr. Gertner described the project.  Mr. Weinstein addressed the board on jurisdiction, stating the notice 
must provide one element in the “the notice of matters to be considered .”  per the Jackson ordinance and 
State statute.  Mr. Weinstein provided copies of the notice to the Board with Mr. Shea’s consent.  The notice 
was marked Exhibit 01.  He said this is a use variance and nothing is in the notice saying that.  The notice 
gives the impression all they want to do is reduce the density of the residential property.  The site received 
prior approval for 150 assisted living units by the Planning Board.  The application is not to reduce the 
number of units, but to build 113 condos in the Highway Commercial zone.  It looks as though the Planning 
Board has already approved the application and all they need are a few variances.  This is not so.  They have 
no jurisdiction to change the Planning Board approval.  He also said that the Planning Board resolution was 
the subject of litigation.  The matter was appealed and withdrawn.  The court retains jurisdiction over that 
Planning Board resolution.  Mr. Sgro asked for the Zoning Board attorney’s input. Mr. Gluck asked if this is a 
new application or an amendment to the old application.  He feels this is a new application.  Mr. Shea said 
this is a new application, not an attempt to modify an old application.  The notice states there was a prior 
approval for a Continuing Care Retirement Community, a permitted use in the H/C zone.  That use is being 
abandoned.  A new application is being applied for here.  If granted, this use will replace the Planning Board 
approval, which is still valid.  They are seeking something not permitted and that only can be granted by the 
Zoning Board.  These are the types of applications that are heard by this Board.  The notice should tell the 
average lay person what the application is all about.  He wrote the notice himself, and doesn’t think the notice 
could be any clearer than that.   



Page 5 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 
Mr. Weinstein said the Planning Board approval has never been abandoned and approval here would grant 
two uses on this property.  The existing resolution of the Planning Board is the subject of litigation, and the 
Planning Board retains jurisdiction to ensure compliance with the settlement.  What right does this Board 
have to abandon the approval of the Planning Board?  They cannot abandon the approval with this 
application. 
 
Mr. Shea said he will stipulate they will freely abandon the approval of the Planning Board with an approval 
of this application.  Land owners have the right to reapply for a different use.  If the use is permitted, the 
Planning Board hears it, if not, the Zoning Board hears it.   
 
Mr. Gertner agreed with Mr. Shea.  Mr. Gluck recommended acceptance of Mr. Shea’s testimony, and Mr. 
Shea said they can put it in the resolution if approval is granted, he expresses to the Board the Planning Board 
approval of rights of a CCRC is abandoned, so there is only one approval on the same piece of property.  Mr. 
Weinstein said this Board does not have jurisdiction as long as they hold a Planning Board approval because 
this matter is still before the Superior Court due to the court order.  Mr. Shea asked if the applicant should go 
back to the Planning Board.  Mr. Weinstein said he is not asking him to do anything, he is just bringing it to 
his attention. 
 
 
 
5. APPLICANT: LAKESIDE LANDING HOLDING COMPANY LLC. (USE VAR. # 2567) 

 BLOCK: 145.01  LOT: 3.02   ZONE: HC 

 LOCATION: JACKSON MILLS ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE FOR 113 AGE-RESTRICTED CONDOMINIUMS IN THE 
HC-ZONE, WHICH IS NOT A PERMITTED USE. (CARRIED FROM THE JUNE 7TH 2006 MEETING 
 
Ray Shea represented the applicant.  From LGA Engineering  - Douglas G. Bartels, PE, and Peter 
Vanderkooy, PP., were sworn by Mr. McCrystal and their credentials accepted.  Mr. Shea said the application 
is for 113 condominiums.  The town has two assisted living facilities and one more application for the same.  
Market conditions appear to not warrant another continuing care facility.  There are more active adult 
communities in Jackson now, and the population continues to rise, but is not there yet.  As far as positive 
criteria, this proposal is an inherently beneficial use, and negative criteria, concerns noise, traffic and the like.  
The planner addresses these issues.  This application is bifurcated and the applicant is only here for the use 
variance.  They will return for the site plan if approved for use variance.  He referred to prior reports from 
Ragan and T&M.   
 
Mr. Vanderkooy testified these are active adult condominiums.  Prior existing approval is for a CCRC, this 
application is for a less intense, use including a general clubhouse, retail, restaurant and parking.  The site is 
vacant and wooded.  Properties in the area are zoned HC and PMUD  (Vista Center).  The property is 6 acres 
and zoned HC.  Retail, restaurants and health facilities are permitted, but residential is not.  A D-1 use 
variance is required to allow this.  The positive criteria involves special reasons that may show a site is 
particularly suited for the proposed use and will advance the purposes of MLUL and that it promotes the 
Master Plan of Jackson.  He said the site is suited to this use, in a prime location near Jackson Commons, 
which will provide additional services for these residents.  This is an excellent transitional use for the area and 
is served by sewer and water.  Higher densities of growth are encouraged in such areas.  It advances MLUL 
because it provides light, air, water, and space, a courtyard area and open area porches.  Located in an area 
where roadway and circulation plans are in place to handle any increased traffic.  This encourages senior 
citizen development, and provides services.  It promotes the 1999 Master Plan of Jackson with its location in 
an area where improvements are planned and getting underway.  The master plan also states that Jackson has 
a need to provide housing for seniors, and these developments do not send kids to the schools.  It also limits 
sprawl.  It is located in a PA-2 planning area that encourages growth.   
 
Regarding negative criteria, the application, if granted, will not substantially be a detriment to the public 
good, nor will it impair the Zoning ordinance.  There are mixed uses in the area, this is more suitable to the 
residential use.  It is a heavily wooded lot, providing 19 dwelling units per acre versus 28 dwelling units/acre.  
They can build the previously approved permitted use.  There is no impairment because it advances MLUL.  
It maintains the character of the surrounding uses.  Variances will not violate the elements of the MLUL.   
 
Mr. Calogero asked if there are tax abatements for the Senior community, and Mr. Shea said no.  Mr. Maher 
asked about COAH requirements and Mr. Shea said they would have to meet that obligation.  Mr. Maher 
asked if they can make payment in lieu of, and Mr. Shea said the costs are high, so they are asking the units to 
be built.  The township will tell the applicant how to satisfy the COAH requirements.  Mr. DiGesu asked 
about the soccer fields going across the street from here.  Mr. Shea was unaware of this.  Mr. DiGesu asked 
where the entrance is because there will be a lot of traffic exiting there and it may interfere with this 
application.  Mr. Shea said this is a low traffic use compared to what could be there.   
 
Mr. Shea agreed to carry this application to get the information on the exit and entrance of traffic for the 
soccer fields.   This application was then carried to August 2, 2006 with no further notice and waiver of time 
granted. 
 

 

 



Page 6 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

 

6. APPLICANT: GEORGE WELLER  (VARIANCE # 2408-1) 

 BLOCK: 94.10   LOT: 27   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: MILL POND ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE FOR A 50 FT. RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT TO CROSS 
OVER A CONSERVATION EASEMENT, WHICH WAS APPROVED BY THE PLANNING BOARD, TO 
GIVE ACCESS FROM WHISHPERING HILLS- BLOCK 94.10 LOT 27 FOR ACCESS OF LOT 5.04. 
 
Warren Peterson represented the applicant.  Applicant George Weller was sworn.  He needs the right to cross 
a conservation easement to get to a landlocked piece of property that has been in his family for a long time.  
In 1988, there was an application by developer, Whispering Hills, to create a subdivision, and their parcel 
abutted the Weller property, creating an access problem. The issue was not decided at that time because the 
development was multi-phase, this was phase 7, and they felt if they waited till phase 7 they would have a 
better idea how to grant the easement.  This ended up in a lawsuit, the outcome was Mr. Weller bought a lot 
in Whispering Hills to give him access to his property.  They then discovered the developer created a 
conservation easement across the very lot he needed to access his property.  They didn’t know who to go 
before to get the proper relief.  Did not get a response from prior Planning Board professionals, Mr. Megill 
thought they should come here to ask for a vacation of the easement; the prior Zoning Board attorney said 
they had no jurisdiction, and directed him to the Township Committee to see to whose benefit the 
conservation easement was created.  The issue was discussed in closed caucus, and they thought the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment should hear this.  Mr. Gertner clarified they are just asking for an easement to cross the 
conservation easement. 
 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 
Peter Annunziata, 63 Mill Pond Road, was sworn.  He owns the lot across from the proposed easement.  The 
lot was supposed to be a house.  He bought his lot in 2000, paying an additional $10,000 for the lot.  He 
would not have purchased it if they knew that there would be a road there.  Mr. Sgro asked who told him it 
would be a house.  Mr. Annunziata passed out copies of the site drawing, saying the developer assured him it 
would be a house.  They feel the road will reduce their property value.  Mr. Megill asked Mr. Weller if his lot 
is wooded and was told no.  Open space would be preserved if a house is not built.  Mr. Annunziata said he 
does not want to see another street in front of his house.  The lot is not mowed, weeded or otherwise 
maintained.   
 
George Weller sworn.  He stated he is seeking a right of access to his property, over 14 acres, an owned since 
1972.  In 1988 he was aware of the Whispering Hills application that abutted his property.  He attended the 
Planning Board meeting and identified the problem at the time.  Shlomo Katz was part principal in the 
Whispering Hills application.  The Board issued resolution 88-56, marked A-1 by Steve McCrystal.  It stated 
the developer would have to provide access to his property.  They tried to enter negotiations, stating this was 
a  multi-phase development where this part was later, and they agreed the best time to look at this was during 
that phase of construction, due to various changes that could occur as they went along with construction.  
These were good faith negotiations, with different ideas, never really defined in the resolution.  Weller filed a 
lawsuit.  The matter was settled when Mr. Weller agreed to buy a lot to give him access.  They then 
discovered a conservation easement on the lot so he still couldn’t get to his lot.  The lot , 140’ x 275’, would 
provide legal access.   The conservation easement runs along the back of all the lots, and most people have 
cleared it.  Mr. Weller’s only impediment is the 20’ conservation easement on the back of his lot, and he 
wants to build a house on his 14 acres.  Mr. Megill found the Planning Board never required the easement; it 
was created by the developer.  Mr. Peterson said they were trying to find out the reason why the conservation 
easement is there, but it is in the title and that runs with the land.  Nevertheless, it exists and the board can 
decide on this hardship to allow him access to the lot.  Mr. McVicar asked the neighbor to look at the tax 
maps, and is it directly across from their lot and was told yes.  It is also a higher elevation.  Mr. Annunziata 
said his bedrooms face front and back.  It was determined the lots are the same size, but the Weller lot is off 
center from theirs and they are not looking for a road in front of their house.  Mr. Maher asked what he will 
build.  Mr. Weller stated one house initially, and he may have to subdivide. His intention is to build one 
house.  Mr. Weller said it will be gravel road initially.  Mr. Calogero noted the  properties to either side are 
developed and asked if those property owners have been notified.  He was told yes.  He asked if there was any 
other access to the lot and was told no.  Will he maintain the lot?  That can be specified in any resolution.  
The development is complete and all roads final paved.  Mr. McVicar asked if he will build one single family 
dwelling or four.  Mr. Weller stated initially he has no intention to put more houses, just one that would need 
a driveway and he has to put utilities back there.  Mr. Sgro said they could not deny access to property, but 
asked what Mr. Weller would do to make this pleasing to the neighbors.  Mr. Weller said he could pave it and 
offset it to the edge of the neighbor’s property line.  Mr. Gertner asked the applicant to come back with a plot 
plan showing exactly where it will go.  Mr. Peterson said the road is permitted, but he needs relief to cross the 
conservation easement.  Mr. DiGesu asked if Mr. Weller would keep the property up so it wouldn’t be an 
eyesore.  It was noted some of the debris has been dumped by the neighbors.  Maintenance can be part of the 
resolution of approval. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED.  Motion:  DiGESU/Bowen.  YES:  Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, 
Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
 
 



Page 7 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

 
PUBLIC SESSION REOPENED 
 
Richard DiFolco, P.E., P.P.,  sworn and his credentials accepted.  The proposed roadway is a permitted use in 
the zone.  All future construction is subject to local and other agency approvals.  Mr. Weller is only here to 
get relief to cross the conservation easement.  The Planning Board missed the point in giving him access but 
creating the easement.  The applicant bought the land and is faced with the easement.  Mr. DiFolco felt it 
conforms to the Master Plan because it  eliminates a landlocked piece of property.   
 
The property width is 140’, and the access may be a single driveway, and later may turn into 28’ wide 
roadway.  The applicant understands he would have to conform to RSIS standards.  Out of 14 acres, 9 acres 
are unencumbered by wetlands. 
 
Donna Annunziata,  68 Mill Pond Road, sworn.  She is concerned with the width of the road and whether it 
will be centered and maintained.  Mr. Sgro asked what they would prefer.  She would prefer the road to one 
side if possible.  She thought they were proposing a 50’ wide road. Mr. Megill clarified that is a right of way 
50, maybe the road would be 20’ eventually.  Mr. McVicar suggested the road be shifted more to the west.  
Ms. Annunziata agreed, stating the road was just final paved, and this will place more heavy equipment on the 
new pavement.  The road would be improved to 20’ or RSIS standards and the property maintained. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED  
 

Motion to approve with the stipulation the road be 20’ or to RSIS standards and the property 

maintained.  Mr. McVicar stated 20’ is edge of pavement to edge of pavement or cart way.  Road to be 

moved 5’ to the West.  Motion to approve by HARMER/Maher.  YES:   Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, 
LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
 
7. APPLICANT: DAVINA DAVID  (VARIANCE # 2578) 

 BLOCK: 152.01  LOT: 14.01   ZONE: LM 

 LOCATION: WEST COMMODORE INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 
APPLICANT IS SEEKING AN INTERPRETATION AND USE VARIANCE FOR GOURMET 
BARBECUE BUSINESS IN THE WEST COMMODORE INDUSTRIAL PARK LM-ZONE.  
 
Application carried to 8/2/06 with no further notice 

 

8. APPLICANT: CARL CARLSON (VARIANCE # 2571) 

 BLOCK: 76   LOT: 6.02   ZONE: NC 

 LOCATION: 707 BENNETTS MILLS ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE TO AMEND THE ORIGINAL APPROVAL FOR THE 
REPAIR AND SALES OF VEHICLES TO ADD THE LEASE OF VEHICLES.  
 

Application carried to 8/2/06 with no further notice 

 

9. APPLICANT: A & M AUTO DIAGNOSTICS, LLC (VARIANCE # 2576) 

 BLOCK: 123.03  LOT: 14   ZONE: HC  
 LOCATION: 2034 W. COUNTY LINE ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE WITH WAIVER OF SITE PLAN TO USE THIS 
PROPERTY AS A MIXED USE. APPLICANT WISHES TO USE PROPERTY TO SELL VEHICLES AND 
REPAIR VEHICLES NOT SOLD BY APPLICANT.    
 
Mr. Shea represented the applicant.  The site used to be a Texaco Gas Station on County Line Road.  The 
applicant pulled out the tanks.  The applicant has been operating the station for 13 years.  The Highway 
Commercial zone allows auto repairs that he is doing.  He also wants to sell autos, which means it would be a 
dual use, but a conditional use.  No new construction is planned.  Mr. Tony Dowbysz, applicant,  sworn.  He 
seeks the right to sell used cars, about 4-5 cars at a time.  While this is a permitted use in zone, he does not 
meet conditions for lot size.  Mr. Megill said the Highway Commercial zone allows auto repairs as a 
conditional use.  He clarified the applicant wants to repair cars and sell those he does not necessarily repair.  
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED AND CLOSED BY DiGESU, making the motion to approve this use 

variance limiting number of cars for sale to 4-5, with waiver of site plan.  Seconded by Bowen.  YES:   
Bowen, Calogero, Harmer, LaBianca, Maher, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 - Zoning Board Minutes of July 19, 2006 (cont’d) 

 

10. SOUTH KNOLLS SECTION 3 (MAJOR SUBDIVISION #610) 

 BLOCK: 111.03   LOT: 1   ZONE: HC/PRC 

 LOCATION: N. COUTNY LINE ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING PRELIMINARY AND FINAL MAJOR SUBDIVISION FOR SECTION 3, 53 
AGE RESTRICTED LOTS AND RV PARKING AREA FOR WHICH THE USE VARIANCE WAS 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ON 4/5/06 VIA RESOLUTION #2006-19  

 

Application carried to 8/2/06 with no further notice 

 

11. APPLICANT: SUNRISE DEVELOPMENT INC.  (MINOR SUB. #1355;P/F SITE PLN # 644) 

 BLOCK: 145.01   LOT: 33.01,33.02,33.03  ZONE: HC 

 LOCATION: N. COUNTY LINE ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A MINOR SUBDIVISION FOR 2 LOTS WITH CONSOLIDATION AND P/F 
SITE PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 3 ONE- STORY COTTAGE TYPE ASSISTED LIVING BUILDINGS 
WITH TEMP. MARKETING OFFICE TRAILER, WHICH RECEIVED A USE VARIANCE ON 5/3/06 
RESOLUTION # 2006-34. 
 

Application carried to 8/2/06 with no further notice. 

 

12. APPLICANT: CARDINALE ENTERPRISES/JACKSON CROSSING  (USE VAR. # 2573) 

 BLOCK: 58.01  LOT: 1.02    ZONE: HC 

 LOCATION: SOUTH HOPE CHAPEL & EAST VETERANS HIGHWAY 

 
APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE FOR A 3 STORY ADDITION TO AN ALREADY 
APPROVED 2 STORY COMMERCIAL BUILDING FOR 55 AND OVER AGE RESTRICTED 
RESIDENTIAL UNITS. (REQUESTED TO BE CARRIED TO THE AUGUST 2, 2006 MEETING) 
 

Application carried to 11/1/06 with renotice. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT  

 

Mr. Megill stated the Board may require their second meeting in August, in light of all the applications 
carried and those already scheduled for August 2.  The Board agreed. 
 
Motion to adjourn at 11:30 p.m. by HARMER/LaBianca.  YES:  by affirmation. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Janice Kisty 
Zoning Board Recording Secretary 
 


